#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

PAUL MYERS,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

CASE NO. /

FEB 17/1087

CLERK, SUPYEME COURT

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

# PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

MICHAEL E. ALLEN
PUBLIC DEFENDER
SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

ANN COCHEU ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER POST OFFICE BOX 671 TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302 (904) 488-2458

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER'S

#

### ISSUE PRESENTED

THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION
BECAUSE THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF
APPEAL'S DECISION IN MYERS v. STATE,
So.2d , 12 FLW 102 (Fla. 1st DCA
DECEMBER 18, 1986) EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY
CONFLICTS WITH THIS COURT'S OPINION IN
WHITEHEAD v. STATE, 498 So.2d 863 (Fla.
1986) AND WITH THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF
APPEAL'S OPINION IN HARRELSON v. STATE,
So.2d , 12 FLW 192 (Fla. 3d DCA
JANUARY 6, 1987).

The Third District in Harrelson v. State, \_\_ So.2d \_\_,

12 FLW 192 (Fla. 3d DCA January 6, 1987) interperted this Court's opinion in Whitehead v. State, 498 So.2d 863 (Fla. 1986) to eliminate the habitual offender statute as an alternative to the guidelines sentencing procedure. This Court in Whitehead at 864 opined:

In determining the continued viability of the habitual offender statute in light of the subsequently enacted sentencing guidelines, we recognize that we must attempt to preserve both statutes by reconciling their provisions, if possible. See State v. Digman, 294 So.2d 325 (Fla. 1974). We find that we cannot do so. In order to retain the habitual offender statute, we would have to conclude that either the sentencing guidelines are not applicable to "statutory" habitual offenders (i.e. those defendants whom the state seeks to punish pursuant to the specific provisions of section 775.084, Florida Statutes) or, if applicable, that the habitual offender statute may be used in and of itself as a legitimate reason to depart from the guidelines. We can find no logical support for either proposition.

Further, the Court reasoned:

Although the legislature did not repeal section 775.084 when it adopted the guidelines, we believe the goals of that section are more than adequately met through application of the guidelines. The habitual

offender statute provides an enhanced penalty based on consideration of a defendant's prior criminal record and a factual finding that the defendant poses a danger to society. The guidelines take into account both of these considerations.

. . . .

In short, the objectives and considerations, of the habitual offender statute are fully accommodated by the sentencing guidelines. In light of this, and the clear language of section 921.001(4)(a), we must conclude that section 775.084 cannot be considered as providing an exemption for a guidelines sentence.

## Id.at 865.

Because the First District's opinion on its face directly and expressly conflicts with this Court's and the Third District's opinion that section 775.084 is no longer a viable sentencing alternative, this court should accept jurisdiction.

### IV CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated, this Court should accept jurisdiction in this cause and quash the decision of the First District Court of Appeal.

Respectfully submitted,

MICHAEL E. ALLEN
PUBLIC DEFENDER
SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

ANN COCHEU

Assistant Public Defender

Post Office Box 671

Tallahassee, Florida 32302

(904) 488-2458

Attorney for Petitioner

## CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing has been furnished by hand-delivery to the Honorable Robert Butterworth, Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida, and mailed to Petitioner, Paul Myers, #072083, Post Office Box 1100, Avon Park, Florida, 33825 this 17 day of February, 1987.

ANN COCHEIL