STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Respondent accepts the Statement of the Case and Facts as stated on page two of Petitioner's Jurisdictional Brief, although said statement is in complete. The Respondent also adopts the facts stated in the lower courts' opinion as reported in 12 F.L.W. at 102, a copy of which is attached hereto as Respondent's Appendix A.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision rendered by the District Court of Appeal, First District, is not in direct and express convlict with this Court's decision in <u>Whitehead v. State</u>, 498 So.2d 863 (Fla. 1986) or the decision rendered by the Third District Court of Appeal in <u>Harrelson v. State</u>, 12 F.L.W. 192 (Fla. 3rd DCA Jan. 6, 1987) on the same point of law and therefore this Court is without jurisdiction. THE DECISION RENDERED BY THE LOWER TRIBUNAL IS NOT IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THIS COURT'S DECISION IN WHITEHEAD V. STATE, 498 So.2d 863 (Fla. 1986) OR THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, THIRD DISTRICT, IN HARRELSON V. STATE, 12 F.L.W. 192 (Fla. 3rd DCA, Jan. 6, 1987) ON THE SAME POINT OF LAW AND THEREFORE THIS COURT LACKS JURISDICTION UNDER ARTICLE V, SEC. 3(b)(3)

The Petitioner contends that the lower tribunal's decision is in conflict with this Court's decision in <u>Whitehead</u>, supra, because this Court rendered Sec. 775.084, Fla. Stat. legally unenforceable.

The Respondent submits this is incorrect. The question of law decided by this Court in <u>Whitehead</u> was whether a trial judge could depart from a recommended guidelines sentence simply because the defendant was determined to be an habitual offender, and held it could not.

The District Court in the case <u>sub</u> judice held that the Habitual Offender Act could be employed to increase the maximum sentence authorized by law so that the recommended guidelines sentence called for on the basis of the Petitioner's prior record could in fact be imposed! Indeed, the lower tribunal said:

> Here, Myers' sentencing scoresheet recommended a 27-40 year convictions. Notwithstanding this, Myers was convicted of a third degree felony and according to Section 775.082, Florida Statutes in excess of five years. This is the statutory maximum allowed by the legislature unless a finding is made pursuant to Section 775.084 of habitual offender status, in which case

> > -3-

a sentence of ten years is the maximum allowed. Myers was sentenced to ten years. As the trial court herein utilized the habitual offender statute the term of imprisonment recommended by the sentencing guidelines, we find no conflict with Whitehead.

12 F.L.W. at 104.

In no way did the lower tribunal use the Habitual Offender Act as an alternative to a guidelines sentence.

In Whitehead this Court said:

[W]e cannot agree with the district court when it finds that habitual offender status is an adequate reason to depart from the recommended guidelines sentence. To the contrary, we hold that section 775.084 cannot operate as an alternative to guidelines sentencing because of the clear directives of section 921.01(4)(a). Nor can the habitual offender status remain viable as a reason for departure in light of our decision in Hendrix.

Because the trial court used the habitual offender statute as its reasons for departing from the guidelines in sentencing Whitehead, we must remand with directions to the district court to return the matter to the trial court for resentencing in accordance with this opinion.

Nothing in the majority opinion even pretends to hold that the Habitual Offender Act has been repealed or has no legal operation within the Sentencing Guidelines Act. Only Justice Overton in his dissent concluded that was the effect of the majority opinion, and, of course, conflict jurisdiction may not be predicated on a dissenting opinion. <u>Reaves v. State</u>, 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986).

-4-

Lastly, the Guidelines Act iself recognizes the interrelationship of the Habitual Offender Act in Rule 3.701 (d)(10) and the Committee Note thereto which provides:

> (d)(10) If any offender is convicted under an enhancement statute, the reclassified degree should be used as the basis for scoring the primary offense in the appropriate category. If the offender is sentenced under section 775.084 (habitual offender), the maximum allowable sentence is increased as provided by the operation of that statute. If the sentence is imposed departs from the recommended sentence, the provisions of paragraph (d)(11) shall apply.

It is absurd to suggest that the Habitual Offender Act has been repealed by the Guidelines Act specifically refers to it by direct reference thereto. Indeed, the result reached below is so clearly correct that no other logical conclusion could be reached.

The case of <u>Harrelson</u>, supra, consists of one simple paragraph and doesn't even speak to the question of law decided by the lower tribunal.

-5-

CONCLUSION

The question of law decided by the lower tribunal is distinctly different from the legal issue decided by this Court in Whitehead and therefore there can be no conflict between the two decisions. Accordingly, this Court is without jurisdiction to review this cause and the petition for review should be denied.